
VIA E‐MAIL 
GraceL@ggcity.org 

October 20, 2021 

City of Garden Grove 
Office of Economic Development 
Attention: Grace Lee 
11222 Acacia Parkway 
Garden Grove, California 92840 

RE:  Response to October 1, 2021 Letter from City of Garden Grove 

Dear Ms. Lee, 

McWhinney is pleased to submit the following responses to the City’s October 1, 2021 letter and 
questions regarding our prior submittals related to the Willowick golf course RFP.  This letter is being 
submitted in accordance with the Surplus Land Act (SLA). Also in accordance with the SLA, we look 
forward to ongoing and successful negotiations with the City to determine and agree upon mutually 
satisfactory terms regarding: (a) overall total number of residential units; (b) total number of affordable 
units; (c) applicable affordability levels; (d) quantity of open space; and (e) long term ground lease. 

McWhinney and its affordable housing development partner, Wakeland Housing, are honored to be 
considered for the Willowick Golf Course redevelopment project. As seasoned master planned 
community and affordable housing developers, we have had the opportunity to work in a range of 
environments with varied needs and considerations. Yet, with every project we undertake, there is a 
guiding North Star: create a place where all people can thrive. 

Our team’s top priority is to create a community that delivers a true sense of place, fosters belonging 
and enables connectivity for residents, workers and guests. We also want to create a place where 
people want to be – where residents, guests and members of the larger community can share common, 
cohesive and fulfilling moments and experiences. 

However, the quality of experiences we’re looking to create only happens when we are intentional 
about it. We know that the potential of each of our communities is unique – often impacted by specific 
cultural, regional and historical considerations. So, to create those moments at Willowick, we must 
infuse the heart and soul of the region into the development, ensuring that it will be reflective of the 
local community’s desires, needs, cultures and aspirations both now and in the future.  

While our proposal outlines our current thoughts and recommendations for the Willowick 
redevelopment, we know that direct input from the Garden Grove and Santa Ana communities will be 
integral in confirming – and potentially redefining – the plan.   
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
 

1. Provide the specific items that need to be satisfied during the developer’s due diligence period. 
 
Response to Question #1: Per our prior proposal submittals, McWhinney (“Developer”) is not 
seeking a traditional due diligence period and is not requesting any contingencies.  In its prior 
review of the Property, McWhinney commenced (and made substantial progress on) title, 
survey, soils, and golf course review, and will complete its review of the same prior to Tenant 
(MWillowick Land, LLC) entering into the Master Ground Lease. 
 

2. If a deposit is proposed, provide the amount of deposit that is non‐refundable. 
 
Response to Question #2: Upon its execution of the Master Ground Lease, Tenant will pay to the 
City of Garden Grove (the “City”) an amount equal to $2,000,000 (the “Initial Base Rent 
Payment”). Per the terms of the previously submitted Master Ground Lease, the Initial Base 
Rent Payment will not be refundable to Tenant, with the following exception: 

 
Tenant will have the right to terminate the Lease due to any adverse developments, 
decisions, or outcomes with respect to the SLA Litigation (including by reason of any 
appeal or challenge with respect thereto) or to new instances of Property Litigation, in 
which case (i) the Lease will terminate, and (ii) the City shall return to developer the 
Base Rent less the “Base Rent Independent Consideration” amount of $200,000. 

 
3. If a deposit is proposed, provide a schedule of when the balance of the deposit will be due and 

at what point it will become non‐refundable. 
 
Response to Question #3:  Please see the response provided to Question #2 above.  Additionally, 
under certain circumstances set forth in the previously submitted Master Ground Lease, Tenant 
could be responsible for up to two Extension Base Rent Payments of $500,000 each. 
 

4. How many acres of the 101.5 does the proposal anticipate selling off to other developers? 
 
Response to Question #4:  Approximately 38 acres. 
 
 

 
‐continued on following page‐ 
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5. If you will consider a long‐term lease of the Site, provide a detailed description and project 
schedule for a proposed land lease, along with the following information: 

 
a. Terms of lease, 
b. Schedule of payments, 
c. Amount of land required to be sold, if any, 
d. Include pro formas for the proposed land lease scenario and project schedule/timeline.  

If you will consider a long‐term lease of the Site either with or without an option to 
acquire and sell a portion of the Site, please provide the above information for both 
options (i.e., with land sales and without land sales). 

 
Response to Question #s 5 (a)(b)(c)(d):  Developer is proposing a 55‐year Ground Lease. Please 
see the following attachments, which present the details of our proposed deal structure: 
 

Exhibit A – Ground Lease Summary 
Exhibit B – Proforma Summary 
Exhibit C – Proforma and Cashflow 

 
6. Provide the acreage to be allocated to public open space and whether the open space use will 

be reserved only for project residents and businesses. 
 
Response to Question #6: Of the 101.5‐acre Willowick site, approximately 22 acres will be 
allocated to public open space, accessible to all members of the general public. This is separate 
and distinct from any private open space (e.g., enclosed front, side or rear yards), or semi‐
private open space (e.g., open front yards adjacent to sidewalks and streets, and amenity spaces 
specific to individual development parcels). 
 
In addition to the 22 acres of proposed onsite open space, the Developer is also willing to 
consider working with all relevant and necessary agencies to: (a) look at enhancing the existing 
adjacent +/‐ 6‐acre Cesar Chavez Campesino Park; (b) enhance the existing Santa Ana River 
walk; and (c) lid over and landscape the existing adjacent Santa Ana River waterway, thereby 
possibly providing an additional +/‐ 16 acres of public open space.    

 
 
 
 
 

‐continued on following page‐ 
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7. Please provide an overall project schedule. If you intend to proceed in phases, also provide sub‐
schedules for each development phase. 
 
Response to Question # 7):  Please see the schedule provided below. 
 

 
 

8. If your proposal is contingent on development approvals or revenue/income stream, please 
provide the following: 

 
a. Development pro formas that will be added to the City’s SLA Website, 
b. Proposed project cash flow pro forma that will be added to the City’s SLA Website. 

 
Response to Question #s 8 (a) and (b):  Although Developer’s proposal is not contingent on 
development approvals, nor is it contingent on revenue/income streams, we are providing the 
following attachments, which present the details of our proposed deal structure: 
 

Exhibit A – Ground Lease Summary 
Exhibit B – Proforma Summary 
Exhibit C – Proforma and Cashflow 

 
9. Provide a detailed breakdown of all residential units, including the following: 

 
a. Number of bedrooms per unit, 
b. Square footage of each unit, 
c. Number of for sale units, 
d. Number of for rent units, 
e. Number of units that will be affordable. 
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Response to Question #s 9 (a)(b)(c)(d)(e): Please see the chart provided below. Due to the 
additional gap financing that is required to finance affordable for sale homes, the proposed 
affordable units at Willowick will be for rent. The for sale and for rent mix for the market rate 
units is provided in the chart below. 

 
While we are providing the following unit mix as part of the Q&A process with the City, this 
information is preliminary in nature, and is being provided prior to our meeting(s) with the 
communities in Garden Grove and Santa Ana to obtain their feedback and input on the types of 
market rate and affordable homes they would like added to the community.  We also look 
forward to engaging with the community to get their similar input on the other uses they would 
like to see incorporated into the master plan development of the Willowick site. While we are 
providing the requested responses to the City’s questions, we also look forward to the 
grassroots work that McWhinney, Wakeland and the community will do together to formulate a 
broadly embraced master planned “community” for the Willowick site. 

 

 
 

10. Provide a detailed breakdown of all affordable residential units, including the following: 
 

a. Level of affordability of each unit, 
b. Size of each unit, broken down by affordability level, 
c. Number of bedrooms per unit, broken down by affordability level, 
d. Number of for rent and for sale units, broken down by affordability level, 

 
Response to Question #s 10 (a)(b)(c): Please see the response provided to Question #9 above. 
 
 
 
 

AMI STUDIO 1 BD 2 BD 3 BD 4 BD TOTAL

Size Range N/A 500 ‐ 600 SF 750 ‐ 850 SF 900 ‐ 1,000 SF N/A Size Range

50% 0 95 49 30 0 174

60% 0 193 121 70 0 384

SUBTOTAL 0 288 170 100 0 558

SALE / RENT  STUDIO 1 BD 2 BD 3 BD 4 BD TOTAL

Size Range 500 ‐ 600 SF 750 ‐ 1,250 SF 1,100 ‐ 1,400 SF 1,400 ‐ 2,500 SF 1,700 ‐ 2,700 SF Size Range

For Sale 0 72 216 309 101 698

For Rent 97 439 390 49 0 975

SUBTOTAL 97 511 606 358 101 1,673

TOTAL 97 799 776 458 101 2,231

Affordable Residential Homes (For Rent)

Market Rate Residential Homes (For Sale & For Rent)
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11. Provide a proposed purchase price for the Site with no contingencies and “as‐is.” 
 
Response to Question # 11: We are not prepared to offer an “as‐is” purchase price. 

 
We hope our responses to the above questions provide the City with the information it needs regarding 
our proposal. However, please feel free to let us know if you have any follow up questions for us. 
 
Thank you again, for considering us for this exciting project! 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Peter Lauener 
 
Peter Lauener 
Executive Vice President, Master Planned Communities 
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EXHIBIT A – Ground Lease Summary 
 

Listed below is a summary of the business terms respecting the Ground Lease proposed to be 
entered into with the City of Garden Grove, which terms are substantially consistent with the 
terms of the Ground Lease previously negotiated between the parties, and submitted to the City 
on June 28, 2019, August 21, 2020, and October 28, 2020. 
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